
Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Meeting Agenda 
January 7, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 
 

1 

I. Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Invocation 

II. Agenda Adoption 

III. Presentation to Council 

• Matt Ashley-Metropolitan Sewerage District Report 

• 2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan Overview  
 

IV. Mayor’s Communications 
 

V. Consent Agenda 

A. Meeting Minutes Adoption 

• December 3, 2015, Agenda Meeting  
• December 10, 2015 Town Council Meeting  

 
B. Metropolitan Sewerage District Board Appointment:  Ashley 

Suggested Motion: To re-appoint Matt Ashley as the Town of Montreat’s 
Representative to the Metropolitan Sewerage District Board for a term of three years 
to expire on January 20, 2019. 
 

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the 
adoption of the agenda and without discussion.  If a member of the governing body requests 
discussion of an item, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.
 
VI. Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Consent Agenda Review 
• 2016 Annual Board Retreat Update: February 8, 2016 
• Town Administrator’s Annual Performance Evaluation 
• Other Topics 

 
VII. Administrative Reports 

A. Police Chief  
B. Public Works Director 
C. Finance Officer 

Packet Page 1



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Meeting Agenda 
January 7, 2016 

 
 

2 

D. Building Inspector/Code Administrator 

VIII. Public Comment – Agenda Items 

Public comments will be heard during this period for only those items listed on the meeting 
agenda

IX. Old Business 

.   

X. New Business 

A. Proposed Revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV-Hillside      
Development, Section II 
• Suggested Motion:  To call for a Public Hearing on February 11, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss proposed revisions to Montreat 
General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV – Hillside Development  

 
B.   Proposed Revisions to Montreat Zoning Ordinance Article VI-General Provisions,      

Section 612.4-Reasonable Accommodations 
• Suggested Motion:  To call for a Public Hearing on February 11, 2016 at 7:15 p.m. 

or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss proposed revisions to Montreat 
Zoning Ordinance Article VI-General Provisions 

 
C.   Appoint a Primary Delegate and an Alternate Delegate to the Land of Sky Regional 

Council 
• Suggested Motion:  To appoint Mayor Tim Helms as Primary Delegate to the 

Land of Sky Regional Council and to appoint _____________ as Alternate 
Delegate to the Land of Sky Regional Council. 

 
D. Town Services Building Roof Repair 

• Suggested Motion:  To approve the Bid Proposal from The Bonitz Company of 
Carolina-Tennessee, Inc. in the amount of $7,625.00 and to authorize the Mayor 
and Town Administrator to execute the necessary contract documents.  

 
E. Vacancy on Town Council 

• Suggested Motion:  To Be Determined 
  

XI. Public Comment – Other Topics 

Public comments will be heard during this period for other public business items or topics not 
listed on the meeting agenda.  

Packet Page 2



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Meeting Agenda 
January 7, 2016 

 
 

3 

 

XII. Commissioner Communications 

XIII. Meeting Dates 
 

 
January Town Council Meeting:  January 14, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

 
Town Services Office Closed: 

 
January 18, 2016 

Martin Luther King, Jr Holiday 
 

January 29, 2016 by 5:00 p.m. Agenda Items Due 
Town Services Office 

 

 
Agenda Packets Available February 2, 2016 

Town Services Office 
 

February 3, 2016, 9:00 a.m. Landcare Committee Meeting 
Moore Center Meeting Room 

 
February 4, 2016, 7:00 p.m. February Agenda Meeting: 

Walkup Building 
 

February 11, 2016, 7:00 p.m. February Town Council Meeting: 
Walkup Building 

 

XIV.  Closed Session 
• Suggested Motion:  To enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina 

General Statute §143-318.11(3) for attorney consultation regarding the Civil Action:  
Carolyn Zoe Crowder, John L. Currie, Nancy B. Thomas, Henry W. Darden, Jr., and 
wife, Carolyn V. Darden, Plaintiffs, versus the Town of Montreat, Defendant. 
 

XV. Adjournment 
 

Packet Page 3



TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  January 14, 2016 
 
 
SUBJECT:
 

  2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan Presentation 

 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 

Agenda Location: Presentations to Council 
Item Number: A 
Department:  Administration 
Contact:  Ron Nalley  
Presenter:  Ron Nalley  
 

BRIEF SUMMARY:  The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a financial planning 
tool that looks into the future to forecast the Town’s equipment, building and 
infrastructure needs.  Generally speaking, an item is included in the Town’s CIP if it has 
a life expectancy of greater than one year and a value of greater than $5,000.  The CIP 
process began with the distribution of the worksheets to department heads and will end in 
March or April with the adoption of the final plan.    

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:
 

  None    

FUNDING SOURCE:
 

  None  

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

  Presentation Handout 

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:

 

   As you can 
see from the handout, the purpose of the CIP presentation is to describe the following:  
what is a capital improvement program; what is included in a CIP; and a description of 
the process for Board members or our residents to request an item be included in the CIP.  
The first draft of the CIP will be completed by late January and I will distribute a draft for 
your consideration at your meeting in February.  Over the next month, the Board and 
residents will be asked to determine if there are any projects that you or they feel need to 
be added, modified or even deleted from the plan.  Following a public hearing in March 
and any additional modifications, the Board can then adopt the plan.   

 
 
 
 

Packet Page 4



Packet Page 5



Packet Page 6



Packet Page 7



Packet Page 8



Packet Page 9



Packet Page 10



Project Title: Local Street Paving Page 2

Milestones: 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020 2015 - 2016
Planning/Preliminary Design 2016 - 2017
Engineering/Arch. Services 2017 - 2018
Land/ROW/Acquisition 2018 - 2019
Award of Contract 2019 - 2020
Construction/Purchase Future Years

Operating Budget Impact:

Project Costs:

Current 
Estimated 

Cost
Prior Year

Costs
Budget

2015 - 2016
Budget

2016 - 2017
Budget

2017 - 2018
Budget

2018 - 2019
Budget

2019 - 2020
Future
Years

Project
Total

Planning/Design/Engineering 18,000$        18,000$        35,000$        29,000$        34,000$        35,000$        34,000$        185,000$      
Land/ROW Acquisition -$              
Construction 176,000$      176,000$      350,000$      285,000$      340,000$      350,000$      340,000$      1,841,000$   
Equipment -$              
Hardware/Software -$              

Total Project Costs: 194,000$      -$              194,000$      385,000$      314,000$      374,000$      385,000$      374,000$      2,026,000$   
Total Operating Budget Costs: -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              
Total Project Estimated Costs: 194,000$      -$              194,000$      385,000$      314,000$      374,000$      385,000$      374,000$      2,026,000$   

Source of Funds: Percentage
Budget

2015 - 2016
Budget

2016 - 2017
Budget

2017 - 2018
Budget

2018 - 2019
Budget

2019 - 2020
Future 
Years

Project
Total

Current Revenue 100.00% 194,000$      385,000$      314,000$      374,000$      385,000$      374,000$      2,026,000$   
Bonds -$              
Assessment -$              
Lease/Purchase -$              
Grant -$              
Other:  ____________________ -$              

Total Funding: 100.00% 194,000$      385,000$      314,000$      374,000$      385,000$      374,000$      2,026,000$   

Professional Services Maintenance/Repair Capital Outlay

Capital Improvement Plan - Project Summary Form

Recommended Time Schedule Operating Budget Impact

Salaries/Benefits Utilities Departmental Expenses

Packet Page 11



PRIORITY 
CODE FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FUTURE TOTAL

1 194,000$     385,000$     314,000$     374,000$     385,000$     374,000$     2,026,000$  
2 818,000$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   818,000$     
10 37,000$        40,000$        88,000$        35,000$        75,000$        100,000$     375,000$     
4 45,000$        -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   45,000$        
B -$                   16,500$        16,500$        16,500$        16,500$        16,500$        82,500$        
B -$                   6,000$          -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   6,000$          
B -$                   -$                   44,000$        -$                   -$                   -$                   44,000$        
B -$                   -$                   45,000$        -$                   -$                   -$                   45,000$        
B -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   16,500$        66,000$        82,500$        
C -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   82,500$        82,500$        

TOTALS 1,094,000$  447,500$     507,500$     425,500$     493,000$     639,000$     3,606,500$  

23,000$        40,000$        37,000$        37,000$        45,000$        34,000$        216,000$     
-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

1,026,000$  385,000$     365,000$     372,000$     415,000$     440,000$     3,003,000$  
45,000$        22,500$        105,500$     16,500$        33,000$        165,000$     387,500$     

-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
TOTALS 1,094,000$  447,500$     507,500$     425,500$     493,000$     639,000$     3,606,500$  

439,600$     431,000$     491,000$     409,000$     460,000$     474,000$     2,704,600$  
-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                   16,500$        16,500$        16,500$        33,000$        165,000$     247,500$     
-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

654,400$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   654,400$     
TOTALS 1,094,000$  447,500$     507,500$     425,500$     493,000$     639,000$     3,606,500$  

Grant
Other

Truck Replacement (96)

Truck Replacement (04)

Leaf/Bucket Truck
Dump Truck Replacement (95)

Equipment
Hardware/Software

Revenue Classifications
Operating Revenues - General
Operating Funds - Powell Bill
Debt/Financing

Construction

Dump Truck Replacement (85)
Sander Replacement
Chipper

Bridge Replacement
New Road Paving

Expenditure Classifications
Planning/Design/Engineering
Land

Local Street Paving

5600/5700 - STREET/POWELL BILL
SUMMARY

The Street Department of the Town of Montreat provides street services and upgrades to the residents of Montreat.  The Street 
Department is responsible for storm water management, road repair and resurfacing, mowing and right-of-way maintenance.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Packet Page 12



PRIORITY
CODE FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FUTURE TOTAL

Sub-Total:  Governing Board 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B 0 60,000 0 0 0 0 60,000
B 0 0 30,000 0 0 0 30,000

0 60,000 30,000 0 0 0 90,000

3 97,650 109,300 109,300 109,300 109,300 1,147,650 1,682,500
B 0 57,800 35,600 35,600 35,600 409,400 574,000
7 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 25,000

122,650 167,100 144,900 144,900 144,900 1,557,050 2,281,500

B 0 36,000 0 36,000 0 36,000 108,000
A&B 0 35,000 0 0 0 0 35,000

0 71,000 0 36,000 0 36,000 143,000

5 35,000 0 0 0 0 0 35,000
6 20,000 30,000 39,000 35,000 12,000 0 136,000
C 0 27,500 0 0 0 0 27,500
C 0 25,000 25,000 0 0 0 50,000
B 0 0 15,000 0 0 0 15,000
B 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 25,000

55,000 82,500 79,000 35,000 12,000 25,000 288,500

B 0 0 4,200 0 0 0 4,200
0 0 4,200 0 0 0 4,200

     Local Street Paving 1 194,000 385,000 314,000 374,000 385,000 374,000 2,026,000
     Bridge Replacement 2 818,000 0 0 0 0 0 818,000

5550  Public Works
     Radio Replacement
Sub-Total:  Public Works

5600 Streets & 5700 Powell Bill

Sub-Total:  Planning & Zoning

Sub-Total:  Police

5400  Planning & Zoning

     Wayfinding Signage Plan
     GPS/GIS Integration
     UDO/Form Based Code

     Vehicle Replacement

     Stormwater Utility Study

     Ordinance Recodification

5100  Police
     Police Vehicle Replacement
     Radio Replacement

     Pavement of Compactor Area
Sub-Total:  Public Buildings

     Public Works Facility

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
SUMMARY ALL DEPARTMENTS

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
4100  Governing Board

5000  Public Buildings
     Town Hall Replacement

4200  Administration
     Comprehensive Plan Update

Sub-Total:  Administration
     Computer Software Update

Packet Page 13



PRIORITY
CODE FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FUTURE TOTAL

     New Road Paving 10 37,000 40,000 88,000 35,000 75,000 100,000 375,000
     Truck Replacement (96) 4 45,000 0 0 0 0 0 45,000

B 0 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 82,500
B 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 6,000
B 0 0 44,000 0 0 0 44,000
B 0 0 45,000 0 0 0 45,000
B 0 0 0 0 16,500 66,000 82,500
C 0 0 0 0 0 82,500 82,500

1,094,000 447,500 507,500 425,500 493,000 639,000 3,606,500

8 75,000 0 0 0 0 0 75,000
B 0 0 0 0 48,000 0 48,000

75,000 0 0 0 48,000 0 123,000

9 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
C 0 25,000 0 0 75,000 0 100,000
C 0 55,000 55,000 0 0 0 110,000

10,000 80,000 55,000 0 75,000 0 220,000

1,356,650 908,100 820,600 641,400 772,900 2,257,050 6,756,700

121,000 165,000 77,000 37,000 45,000 34,000 479,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1,115,650 622,100 603,900 551,900 646,900 1,997,050 5,537,500
120,000 93,500 109,700 52,500 81,000 226,000 682,700

0 27,500 30,000 0 0 0 57,500
1,356,650 908,100 820,600 641,400 772,900 2,257,050 6,756,700

647,600 744,500 659,200 480,000 595,000 535,000 3,661,300
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

54,650 143,600 161,400 161,400 177,900 1,722,050 2,421,000
0 20,000 0 0 0 0 20,000

654,400 0 0 0 0 0 654,400
1,356,650 908,100 820,600 641,400 772,900 2,257,050 6,756,700

Planning/Design/Engineering
Land
Construction

     Dump Truck Replacement (85)    
     Sander Replacement
     Chipper Replacement

     Sanitation Trk. Replacement

     Dump Truck Replacement (95)    
     Leaf/Bucket Truck
Sub-Total:  Streets/Powell Bill

5800  Sanitation

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

     Truck Replacement (04)

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
SUMMARY ALL DEPARTMENTS

     Sanitation Pick-Up Truck

     Gateway Plan

Sub-Total:  Sanitation

6190  Conservation/Recreation
     Native Plant Garden
     Sidewalks/Greenways Devp.

Sub-Total:  Recreation

TOTAL

Equipment
Hardware/Software
TOTAL

Other

Operating Revenues-General
Operating Revenues-Powell Bill
Debt/Financing
Grant

GENERAL FUND TOTALS

Expenditure Classifications

Revenue Classifications

Packet Page 14



FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FUTURE TOTAL

967,000 976,000 986,000 996,000 1,005,000 1,016,000 5,946,000
369,000 380,000 391,000 402,000 413,000 425,000 2,380,000

59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 354,000
694,500 41,500 42,500 43,500 44,500 45,500 912,000

96,000 96,500 97,000 97,500 98,000 98,500 583,500
13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 78,000

5,500 5,500 6,000 6,000 6,500 6,500 36,000
TOTALS 2,204,000 1,571,500 1,594,500 1,617,000 1,639,000 1,663,500 10,289,500

45% 45% 45% 45% 45% 45% 45%
991,800 707,175 717,525 727,650 737,550 748,575 4,630,275

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
54,650 143,600 161,400 161,400 177,900 1,722,050 2,421,000

654,400 0 0 0 0 0 654,400

647,600 744,500 659,200 480,000 595,000 535,000 3,661,300
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

54,650 143,600 161,400 161,400 177,900 1,722,050 2,421,000
0 20,000 0 0 0 0 20,000

654,400 0 0 0 0 0 654,400
TOTAL 1,356,650 908,100 820,600 641,400 772,900 2,257,050 6,756,700

121,000 165,000 77,000 37,000 45,000 34,000 479,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1,115,650 622,100 603,900 551,900 646,900 1,997,050 5,537,500
120,000 93,500 109,700 52,500 81,000 226,000 682,700

0 27,500 30,000 0 0 0 57,500
TOTAL 1,356,650 908,100 820,600 641,400 772,900 2,257,050 6,756,700

Existing
Proposed
Other

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATIONS

Construction 

REVENUE CLASSIFICATIONS
Operating Revenues - General
Operating Funds - Powell Bill
Debt/Financing
Grant
Other

Equipment
Hardware/Software

Planning/Design/Engineering
Land

HISTORICAL DATA

Capital Funding Based on Average %
Average % Capital vs. Revenue

DEBT SERVICE

Ad Valorem Taxes
Other Taxes
Unrestricted Intergovernmental
Restricted Intergovernmental

Sales and Services
Permits and Fees

Investment Earnings/Miscellaneous

GENERAL FUND REVENUES
SUMMARY

REVENUE SOURCES

Packet Page 15



Packet Page 16



Packet Page 17



Packet Page 18



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Agenda Meeting 
December 3, 2015 
Walkup Building 

  

 

Book 13; Page  

Board members present
Commissioner Martha Campbell 

: Mayor Pro Tem Mary Standaert 

Commissioner Tim Helms 
Commissioner Jack McCaskill  
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent
 

: Mayor Letta Jean Taylor 

Town staff present
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

:  Ron Nalley, Town Administrator 

Steve Freeman, Public Works Director 
Barry Creasman, Senior Water Operator 
Chief Jack Staggs, Chief of Police 
Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer & Deputy Town Clerk 

 
Approximately fifteen members of the public were also present.  Mayor Pro Tem Standaert 
called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and 
observed a moment of silence. 
 

 
Agenda Approval 

Mayor Pro Tem Standaert welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked if there were any 
corrections to the agenda.  Commissioner Campbell moved to adopt the meeting agenda as 
presented.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0.   

 
 

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Pro Tem Standaert stated that at next week’s meeting we will have plaque presentations 
for Mayor Taylor, Commissioner McCaskill, and Commissioner Campbell; recognize our 
community volunteers; and officially welcome new Town Clerk, Angie Murphy. 
 

 
Consent Agenda Review 

The proposed Consent Agenda included the following items: 
 

• July 2, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• July 9, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• August 6, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• August 11, 2015, Special Meeting Minutes 

Packet Page 19



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Meeting Minutes 

December 3, 2015 
 

 

Book 13; Page  

• August 13, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• September 3, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• September 10, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• October 1, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• October 8, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• October 15, 2015, Special Meeting Minutes 
• November 5, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes (Pending)  
• November 12, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes (Pending)  
 

Mayor Pro Tem Standaert mentioned that all new and returning Commissioners should come 
prepared with their calendars next week in preparation for the Calendar Adoption and for 
scheduling meetings.   

 

 
Town Administrator’s Communications 

Mr. Nalley stated that with Mayor Taylor and Commissioner Campbell leaving Council, as well 
as the departure of the former Town Clerk, the Town is left with only one authorized signatory 
at Asheville Savings  Bank.   Mr. Nalley stated that the Consent Agenda proposes adding Mayor 
Elect Tim Helms and new Town Clerk Angie Murphy as authorized signers for the Town’s 
accounts at Asheville Savings Bank.   

 

 
Administrative Reports 

The Board will hear reports from the Police Chief, Public Works Director, Finance Officer and 
Building Inspector/Code Administrator during next week’s Town Council Meeting. Mayor Pro 
Tem Standaert requested additional information under the Finance Officer’s report on the 
letter included in their packets about the Water Fund.  Commissioner Campbell also requested 
Mr. Stackhouse to be prepared to report on attorney fees spent up this point in the fiscal year. 
 

 
Public Comment – Agenda Items 

Mayor Pro Tem Standaert reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks 
pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
There were no comments from the public at this time. 
 
 

 
 
 

Packet Page 20



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Meeting Minutes 

December 3, 2015 
 

 

Book 13; Page  

 
Old Business 

A. Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article V:  Trees:

 

 Mr. Nalley reported that prior to  
the Ordinance adoption at the November Town Council Meeting, the Board removed 
Section 8: Mitigation of Unsafe Trees on Private Property, with the understanding that two  
Commissioners were going to work on alternative language.  This work has been completed 
and is being brought back to the Board for consideration.  The proposed revision adds 
language that would allow the Public Works Director, in conjunction with the Environmental 
Commissioner, to cause or order to be removed any tree or shrub from private property 
adding an extra layer of approval and protection for the private property owner.  The 
amendment also exempts hemlock trees infected with Hemlock Wooly Adelgid from this 
section. 

B. Montreat Landcare Committee Appointments: 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Standaert stated that all 
Landcare entities were asked to update their various appointees to the Committee.  In 
response to a question from Commissioner Helms, Mr. Nalley stated that all Board 
appointments typically end on January 31st of the given year.   

 
New Business 

A. Oaths of Office

 

:  Oaths of office will be administered to Commissioner-Elect Kitty Fouche, 
Commissioner-Elect Bill Gilliland and Mayor-Elect Tim Helms. 

B.  Appointment of Mayor Pro Tempore

 

:  The new Town Council will appoint a Mayor Pro Tem 
at next week’s meeting. 

C.    Scheduling of 2016 Annual Board Retreat
       bring their calendars for scheduling of the Annual Board Retreat.  

-Mayor Pro Tem Standaert reminded everyone to  

 

 
Public Comment – Other Topics 

Mayor Pro Tem Standaert reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks 
pertaining to public business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or 
communications from other community entities.   
 
There were no comments from the public at this time. 
 

 
Commissioner Communications 

Commissioner Campbell reported from the Landcare Committee Meeting that the Hemlock 
Restoration Project work continues with another 1,000 beetles to be released in the next few 
days.  More recent Hemlock work has included chemical treatments on larger Carolina Hemlock 

Packet Page 21



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Meeting Minutes 

December 3, 2015 
 

 

Book 13; Page  

trees.  Educational signs about the restoration project and the wooly adelgid are being 
developed by Dr. Dottie Shuman’s class to mirror those already located along Elizabeth’s Path.   
There is also ongoing planning for the 4th Annual Native Plant Sale and Arbor Day Celebration to 
be held the last weekend in April 2016.  Volunteers are needed to continue the success of this 
event.  The PHC Annual Christmas Tea will be held next Wednesday, December 9 from 3- 5:30 
PM. The tea is a thank you to supporters and to the community. Commissioner Campbell 
encouraged everyone to be present at 4 PM when a 60 year old time capsule will be opened.  
The Montreat College Choir and Chamber Orchestra have their Christmas Concert on Saturday 
in Anderson Auditorium. The concert is free; donations to the Montreat College Music 
Department are appreciated.  
 
Commissioner Campbell then expressed her appreciation for the opportunity to serve the Town 
of Montreat as a Commissioner the past four years. In addition to supporting the ongoing 
business of the Town, she noted several accomplishments:  paving the bike lane, paving the 
walking path from the Gate to Lake Susan, hiring our current Police Chief, Jack Staggs, providing 
extra training for town staff and updating a number of our Ordinances. The Town has also kept 
up with regional, state and national issues that directly affect our town’s ability to serve its 
citizens and institutions.  Commissioner Campbell stated that she appreciated the partnership 
the Council and town have with a capable and hard-working Town Administrator and Town 
Staff and that she wishes the new Council well as they continue the work and progress of our 
town. 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Standaert announced that if anyone is interested in learning more about the 
Hemlock Project to contact either her or her husband.  Margot Walston’s group, Mountain 
True, will be leading a hike onto Brushy on December 12th.  She also welcomed again, new 
Town Clerk, Angie Murphy.   
 
 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

 
December Town Council Meeting:  December 10, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

 
Town Services Office Closed: 

 
December 24-25, 2015 

Christmas Holidays 
 

December 31, 2015, 5:00 p.m. Agenda Items Due: 
Town Services Office 

 
January 1, 2016 Town Services Office Closed: 

New Year’s Day Holiday 
 

Packet Page 22



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Meeting Minutes 

December 3, 2015 
 

 

Book 13; Page  

 
Landcare Committee Meeting: January 6, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Moore Center Meeting Room 
 

January 7, 2016, 7:00 p.m. January Agenda Meeting: 
Walkup Building 

 
January 14, 2016, 7:00 p.m. January Town Council Meeting: 

Walkup Building 
 

 

 
Adjournment 

Commissioner Vinson moved to adjourn the Agenda Meeting. Commissioner Campbell 
seconded and the motion carried 5/0.   The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
 
   

Mary Standaert, Mayor Pro Tem  Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

 

Packet Page 23



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Meeting 
December 10, 2015 

Walkup Building 
 

 
Board members present: Mayor Pro Tem Mary Standaert 

Commissioner Martha Campbell 
Commissioner Tim Helms 
Commissioner Jack McCaskill 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent: Mayor Letta Jean Taylor 
 

Town staff present:  Ron Nalley, Town Administrator 
Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer & Deputy Town Clerk 
Steve Freeman, Public Works Director 
Barry Creasman, Senior Water Operator 
Chief Jack Staggs, Chief of Police 
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
David Currie, Code Administrator/Building Inspector 

     
Approximately 69 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Pro Tem Standaert called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and held a moment 
of silence.   
 

Agenda Approval 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Standaert asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Commissioner Campbell 
moved to adopt the meeting agenda as presented.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion 
carried 5/0.    
 

Mayor’s Communications 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Standaert thanked the members of the Town’s various appointed boards and 
committees and other community volunteers for their service.  Members of these committees who 
were in attendance stood up to be recognized.  Mayor Pro Tem Standaert awarded plaques of 
appreciation to Commissioner Campbell and Commissioner McCaskill and thanked them for their 
service to the Town of Montreat.  Mayor Taylor was unable to attend the meeting, however Mayor 
Pro Tem Standaert read Mayor Taylor’s plaque of appreciation and announced that Mayor Letta 
Jean Taylor had received the Order of The Long Leaf Pine signed by Governor Pat McCrory.  The 
Order of the Long Leaf Pine is presented to outstanding North Carolinians who have demonstrated 
a lifetime of service to the State and their community.    Mayor Pro Tem Standaert then administered 
the Oath of Office for Town Clerk Angela M. Murphy. 
 

Packet Page 24



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2015 
 

 
Consent Agenda Review 

 

With the adoption of the Consent Agenda, the Board approved the following items:  

 July 2, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes  

 July 9, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 August 6, 2015 Agenda Meeting Minutes  

 August 11, 2015, Special Meeting Minutes  

 August 13, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 September 3, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes  

 September 10, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 October 1, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes  

 October 8, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 October 15, 2015, Special Meeting Minutes  

 November 5, 2015, Agenda Meeting Minutes  

 November 12, 2015, Town Council Meeting Minutes  

  2016 Board of Commissioners Annual Meeting Calendar  

 2016-2017 CIP and Budget Preparation Calendar  

 2015-2016 Budget Amendment #3 

 Corporate Authorization Resolutions #15-12-0001 through #15-12-0005 amending the 
Town of Montreat’s list of authorized signers with Asheville Savings Bank. 
 

Town Administrator’s Communications 
 

Mr. Nalley stated that quotes for repairs to fix the damage to the roof and ceiling from all the recent 
rains at the Town Services Building are currently being gathered and will be brought to the Board in 
January.  Commissioner Helms advised Mr. Nalley that if the mold became a problem to go ahead 
and see that it is ameliorated.  

Administrative Reports 
 

Police:  Chief Staggs reviewed and presented the November 2015 monthly departmental activity 
report.  He commended Master Police Officer Arrant for climbing up the side of a balcony to help a 
small child locked in a master bedroom.  Chief Staggs reminded everyone that with the Holidays 
coming up to keep vehicles secured and free of valuables. 
 
Public Works Director:  Mr. Freeman reported that beginning January 6, 2016 the Sanitation 
Department will go to a bi-weekly collection schedule alternating between leaves and brush.  The 
crews are currently working on cleaning the ditches of leaves and debris on the lower part of town.  
They are also working on replacing 85 stop signs with the new North Carolina Department of 
Transportation mandated reflective styles that will be required for 2016.  Mr. Freeman reported 
that there were no water leaks in the month of November.   
 

Packet Page 25



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2015 
 

 
Finance Officer:  Mr. Stackhouse presented and reviewed the following monthly reports: 
 

 October 2015 Financial Summary Report; 

 Final October 2015 Detailed Financial Statement; 

 Preliminary November 2015 Detailed Financial Statement; 

 November 30, 2015 Cash and Investment Earnings Report; 

 Year-to-Date Legal Fees Report with regards to the lawsuit. 

 
Mr. Stackhouse also reviewed a letter from the N.C. Local Government Commission expressing 
concern over fund balances and revenue fee structure as it relates to expenditures in the Water 
Fund.   Mr. Stackhouse and Mr. Nalley will be drafting a response which informs them of the Town’s 
special assessment activities that tend to inflate our expenditures on a short-term basis.  Mr. 
Stackhouse advised the Council that Water Rates will need to be discussed at the Annual Board 
Retreat as has been done in the past. 
 
Building Inspector/Code Administrator:  Mr. Currie presented and reviewed his November 2015 
zoning and inspections activity report.  The Planning and Zoning Commission met to discuss setback 
requirements under the Zoning Ordinance and plan to present amendments to Council at their 
January meeting.  Under the Federal Fair Housing Act jurisdictions are required to make reasonable 
accommodations in their Zoning Ordinances.  A recent case brought before the Board of Adjustment 
called into question whether the town provides reasonable accommodations to the extent 
necessary.  These amendments will also be brought back to the Council in January.  
 

Public Comments  
 

Mayor Pro Tem Standaert reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks 
pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
There were no comments from the public at this time.   
 

Old Business 
 
A. Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article V:  Trees:  Following a brief discussion of the 

revisions and scope of the Ordinance, Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt Ordinance #15-12-
0001 amending Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article V-Trees.  Commissioner 
Campbell seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  Commissioner Campbell moved to appoint Bill 
Solomon, Maggie Ray and John Johnson to the Montreat Tree Board for a term of three years to 
expire on January 31, 2019.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0. 

 

Packet Page 26



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2015 
 

 
B.  Montreat Landcare Committee Appointments:  Commissioner Vinson moved to appoint the 

Environmental Commissioner of the Montreat Board of Commissioners, Martha Campbell and 
Shannon Ingersoll to the Montreat Landcare Committee for a term of two years to expire on 
January 31, 2018.  Commissioner Helms seconded and the motion carried 5/0. 

 
New Business 

 
A. Oaths of Office:  Town Clerk Angela M. Murphy administered the Oath of Office to Commissioner 

Kitty Fouche, Commissioner Bill Gilliland and Mayor Tim Helms. 
 

Mayor Helms addressed the public and thanked them for coming to the meeting as well as for 
their participation on Election Day.  Mayor Helms stated that he looks forward to working with 
the Montreat Conference Center, Montreat College, Presbyterian Heritage Center and Montreat 
Cottagers Inc.  As for the months ahead, Mayor Helms stated that the new Council was not going 
to build a Town Hall on Florida Terrace and that they are going to look at relocating the Bridge 
on Texas Road.  Mayor Helms anticipates reviewing the Town Ordinances to ease restrictions 
and improve the process for building new homes in Montreat in order to grow the tax base and 
resolving the Sanitation delivery services as well.  Mayor Helms stated that Commissioner 
Gilliland and Commissioner Fouche had proposed the appointment of Kent Otto for the 
remaining two years of Mayor Helm’s now vacant Commissioner seat.  Mayor Helms stated that 
he investigated the suggestion and looks forward to making that appointment.  Commissioner 
Standaert appreciated the suggestion to appoint Mr. Otto, however she felt that the Board 
should be open to allowing other members of the community, if interested, to submit an 
application as has been done in the past.  Mayor Helms stated that the matter will be placed on 
the January Agenda Meeting for further discussion. 

 
B. Appointment of Mayor Pro Tempore:  Mayor Pro Tem Standaert nominated Commissioner Ann 

Vinson to be appointed as Mayor Pro Tempore.  Commissioner Vinson seconded the motion.  
Mayor Pro Tem Standaert then proposed an amendment to the motion stating that if other 
people were going to be nominated that they be nominated at this time.  Commissioners Vinson 
and Standaert voted for the amendment.  Commissioners Gilliland and Fouche voted against the 
amended motion.  Mayor Helms announced that the vote was 2/2 and as Mayor he was voting 
against the amendment.  The motion to amend failed 2/3 with Mayor Helms, Commissioner 
Fouche and Commissioner Gilliland voting against the motion.  Mayor Helms then returned to 
the original motion of appointing Commissioner Ann Vinson as Mayor Pro Tempore.  
Commissioner Standaert and Commissioner Vinson voted in favor of the motion.  Commissioner 
Gilliland and Commissioner Fouche voted against the motion.  Mayor Helms announced that the 
vote was 2/2 and as Mayor he was voting against the motion.  The motion to appoint 
Commissioner Ann Vinson as Mayor Pro Tempore failed 2/3 with Mayor Helms, Commissioner 
Fouche and Commissioner Gilliland voting against the motion.  Commissioner Gilliland then 
moved that Commissioner Fouche be appointed Mayor Pro Tempore.  Commissioner Fouche 

Packet Page 27



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2015 
 

 
seconded the motion and the motion carried 3/1 with Commissioner Standaert voting against 
the motion.  Mayor Helms then asked Keith Grogg to lead the group in prayer.   

 
C. Scheduling of 2016 Annual Board Retreat:  The Council scheduled the 2016 Annual Board Retreat 

for February 8th, 2016.  Town Clerk Angie Murphy will be making arrangements for a meeting 
location.    

 
Public Comment – Other Topics 

 
Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
public business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications 
from other community entities. 
 
Adlai Boyd, 208 Harmony Lane, congratulated the new Mayor and Board members.   
 

Commissioner Communications 
 

There were no Commissioner reports at this time. 
 

Upcoming Meeting Dates 
 

Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:  
 

Town Services Office Closed: December 24 -25, 2015 
Christmas Holidays 

 
Agenda Items Due: December 31, 2015, 5:00 p.m. 

Town Services Office 
 

Town Services Office Closed: January 1, 2016 
New Year’s Day Holiday 

 
Landcare Committee Meeting: January 6, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Moore Center Meeting Room 
 

January Agenda Meeting January 7, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 
Walkup Building 

 
January Town Council Meeting 
 

January 14, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 
Walkup Building 

 
 

Packet Page 28



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2015 
 

 
Adjournment 

 
There being no further business, Mayor Helms moved to adjourn the Town Council Meeting. 
Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 4/0.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:11 
p.m.  
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

 

Packet Page 29



Packet Page 30



Packet Page 31



Packet Page 32



Packet Page 33



Packet Page 34



Packet Page 35



Packet Page 36



MONTHLY POLICE STATISTICS REPORT 

 

December 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 

Mileage 3424 2840 2794 2976 3307 

Dispatched Calls 63 64 91 103 57 

Officer-Initiated Calls 238 164 253 174 309 

Fire/EMS Assistance Calls 5F/2E 5F/2E 5F/1E 8 1 

Motorist/Other Assistance Calls 49 39 67 56 10 

Traffic Stops 21/69CP 33/50CP 29/21CP 24 29 

Parking Issues 5 3 7 9 14 

Burglar/Fire Alarm Responses 4B/3F 2B/1F 2B/3F 3 8 

Residential/Building Checks 277 291 137 168 690 

Ordinance violations 8 15 5 8 9 

LE Agency Assistance Calls 20 17 23 26 57 

Animal Calls 9 0 4D 5 5 

Larcenies 0 3 0 0 2 

B&E Calls 0 0 0 0 1 

Suspicious Person/Vehicle Investigations 6P/23V 3P/15V 3P/9V 6P 7V 26 

Disturbance Calls 6 9 1 1 2 

Accident Responses 1 1 2 1 0 

Auxiliary Hours Worked 32R/24T 40R/48T 40R/36T 77 120 

Truck turns at gate 0 1 2 1 10 

 

 Town service: 446   

 MRA service: 148 

 College service: 14 

 On 12/01/2015 MPD discovered a gas leak on Kentucky Road, BMFD was notified and found it was coming 

from a tank 

 On 12/03/2015 MPD assisted Buncombe County Arson Task Force reference locating college students that 

they needed to interview reference an arson investigation in Black Mountain 

  On 12/10/2015 MPD investigated a dog bite incident at the Post Office 

 On 12/12/2015 MPD participated in the Black Mountain Center’s Christmas Parade 

 On 12/18-19/2015 MPD monitored the weather situation in Town, Officers removed several limbs and 

branches from roadway.  At approximately 10 p.m. a larger tree fell on North Carolina Terrace and the Street 

Department had to be contacted (Thanks again to the Street Department)  

 On 12/19/2015 MPD discovered a water leak at a residence on North Carolina Terrace, the Water 

Department was contacted and the meter was shut down (Thanks again to the Water Department) 

 On 12/19&23/2015 MPD participated in the North Carolina Governors Highway Safety Program  with 

BCSD, DHR, BMPD 

 Note: MPD would like to wish the Town of Montreat a Happy New Year and to thank all residents for the 

cards, food, and well wishes that were received.  We truly are blessed to have such a great community! 

 Note: All MPD Officers have completed their state and department mandatory classes and firearm 

requirements: Domestic Violence, Missing Children, Emotional Survival, Legal Updates, Active Shooter, LE 

Intel Updates, Hazardous Material and Blood-Borne Pathogens, A Juvenile – What Does It Have To Do 

With Me?,  Teenage Dating Violence, Firearms Qualification (Day and Night), Firearms classroom Use of 

Force, for a total of 192 hours 

Packet Page 37



Packet Page 38



Packet Page 39



Packet Page 40



Packet Page 41



Packet Page 42



Packet Page 43



Packet Page 44



Packet Page 45



Packet Page 46



Packet Page 47



Packet Page 48



Packet Page 49



Packet Page 50



Packet Page 51



Packet Page 52



Packet Page 53



Packet Page 54



Packet Page 55



Packet Page 56



Packet Page 57



Packet Page 58



Packet Page 59



Packet Page 60



Packet Page 61



Packet Page 62



Packet Page 63



Packet Page 64



Packet Page 65



                                      General Fund

                                            Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

                                                                        For the Period Ended November, 2015  

4 FYE 2016 Previously Current FYE 2016 FYE 15 Comparison FYE 2016

Actual to 

Budget %

Statement 

Period Variance 11/30/14

Budgeted Reported Month YTD Actual YTD Actual  Remaining Budget 5

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes 952,500.00$          138,416.29$          149,662.57$          288,078.86$          209,308.56$            664,421.14$          

Other taxes and licenses 357,400.00$          72,246.98$            31,944.24$            104,191.22$          91,103.17$              253,208.78$          

Unrestricted intergovernmental 60,500.00$            -$                      118.49$                 118.49$                 6,559.24$                60,381.51$            

Permits and Fees 46,000.00$            14,721.74$            660.00$                 15,381.74$            11,160.31$              30,618.26$            

Community Service Fee 50,000.00$            30,086.00$            10,676.80$            40,762.80$            32,591.00$              9,237.20$              

Sales and Services 13,000.00$            4,339.81$              225.00$                 4,564.81$              3,343.72$                8,435.19$              

Investment earnings 2,200.00$              282.02$                 98.68$                   380.70$                 356.14$                   1,819.30$              

Other revenues 13,700.00$            1,500.00$              10,093.20$            11,593.20$            740.38$                   2,106.80$              

Subtotal - Normal Operating 1,495,300.00$       261,592.84$          203,478.98$          465,071.82$          355,162.52$            1,030,228.18$       31.10% 41.67% -10.56% -17.71%

Restricted intergovernmental 740,000.00$         88,354.40$           47,662.96$           136,017.36$         19,721.16$              603,982.64$         

Contributions - Landcare 10,000.00$           14,000.00$           100.00$                14,100.00$           -$                        (4,100.00)$            

Contributions - Open Space -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                      

Total Revenues 2,245,300.00         363,947.24            251,241.94            615,189.18            374,883.68$            1,630,110.82         27.40% 41.67% -14.27% -25.62%

Expenditures:

Governing Body 104,700.00$          30,767.11$            11,536.01$            42,303.12$            14,313.62$              62,396.88$            40.40% 41.67% 1.26% 20.59%

Administration 282,800.00$          83,288.38$            16,375.12$            99,663.50$            123,959.35$            183,136.50$          35.24% 41.67% 6.42% -2.72%

Public Buildings 139,950.00$          34,645.58$            (229.86)$               34,415.72$            134,692.83$            105,534.28$          24.59% 41.67% 17.08% -17.92%

Police 368,925.00$          127,058.30$          40,687.71$            167,746.01$          145,077.43$            201,178.99$          45.47% 41.67% -3.80% 3.78%

Building & Zoning 82,200.00$            25,204.07$            6,520.36$              31,724.43$            28,697.05$              50,475.57$            38.59% 41.67% 3.07% 3.86%

Public Works 86,100.00$            24,283.09$            5,485.55$              29,768.64$            29,522.72$              56,331.36$            34.57% 41.67% 7.09% 1.65%

Streets 1,271,400.00$       125,425.64$          12,881.58$            138,307.22$          163,794.17$            1,133,092.78$       10.88% 41.67% 30.79% 30.35%

Powell Bill 56,000.00$            2,508.64$              60.00$                   2,568.64$              3,635.60$                53,431.36$            4.59% 41.67% 37.08% 33.31%

Sanitation 113,600.00$          32,389.54$            9,726.31$              42,115.85$            43,097.57$              71,484.15$            37.07% 41.67% 4.59% -3.25%

Env/Cons/Rec 28,500.00$            528.42$                 5,231.84$              5,760.26$              -$                        22,739.74$            20.21% 41.67% 21.46% 41.67%

Total expenditures 2,534,175.00         486,098.77$          108,274.62$          594,373.39$          686,790.34$            1,939,801.61$       23.45% 41.67% 18.21% 16.24%

Revenues over expenditures (288,875.00)           (122,151.53)$        142,967.32$          20,815.79$            (311,906.66)$          (309,690.79)$         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer to/from Water Fund -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Fund Balance Appropriated: 288,875.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        288,875.00$          

Total other financing sources (uses) 288,875.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        288,875.00$          

Revenues and other sources over

  expenditures and other uses -$                       (122,151.53)$        142,967.32$          20,815.79$            (311,906.66)$          (20,815.79)$           

Expenditure Recap:

Salaries & Benefits 922,400.00$          297,315.66$          79,671.20$            376,986.86$          366,545.99$            545,413.14$          

Other Operating 395,300.00$          124,884.78$          28,603.42$            153,488.20$          140,888.20$            241,811.80$          

CIP/Grant Projects 1,216,475.00$      63,898.33$           -$                      63,898.33$           179,356.15$            1,152,576.67$      

Total Expenditures 2,534,175.00$       486,098.77$          108,274.62$          594,373.39$          686,790.34$            1,939,801.61$       

Packet Page 66



                                      Water Fund

                                            Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

                                                                        For the Period Ended November, 2015  
                                                                        

FYE 2016 Previously Current FYE 2016 FYE 15 Comparison FYE 2016

Actual to 

Budget 

Percent

Statement 

Period Variance 11/30/14

Budgeted Reported Month YTD Actual YTD Actual  Remaining Budget 5

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes -$                      -$                       

Other taxes and licenses -$                       64,800.06$            64,800.06$            (64,800.06)$           

MRA Comm Svc Fee -$                       -$                      -$                       

Permits and Fees -$                      -$                       

Sales and Services 300,000.00$          113,259.04$          22,603.87$            135,862.91$          128,530.35$            164,137.09$          

Investment earnings 500.00$                 26.48$                   6.64$                     33.12$                   31.21$                     466.88$                 

Other revenues 26,500.00$            13,505.02$            456.01$                 13,961.03$            14,971.82$              12,538.97$            

Subtotal - Normal Operating 327,000.00$          126,790.54$          87,866.58$            214,657.12$          143,533.38$            112,342.88$          

Restricted intergovernmental -$                      -$                      

Total revenues 327,000.00$          126,790.54$          87,866.58$            214,657.12$          143,533.38$            112,342.88$          65.64% 41.67% 23.98% -15.04%

Expenditures:

Water Department 327,000.00$          44,889.19$            24,735.73$            69,624.92$            53,418.28$              257,375.08$          21.29% 41.67% 20.37% 31.76%

Total expenditures 327,000.00$          44,889.19$            24,735.73$            69,624.92$            53,418.28$              257,375.08$          21.29% 41.67% 20.37% 31.76%

Revenues over expenditures -$                       81,901.35$            63,130.85$            145,032.20$          90,115.10$              (145,032.20)$         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers to/from General Fund -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Fund Balance Appropriated: -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Total other financing sources (uses) -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Revenues and other sources over

  expenditures and other uses -$                       81,901.35$            63,130.85$            145,032.20$          90,115.10$              (145,032.20)$         

Expenditure Recap:

Salaries & Benefits -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                       

Other Operating 327,000.00$          44,889.19$            24,735.73$            69,624.92$            53,118.28$              257,375.08$          

CIP/Grant Projects -$                      -$                      -$                      300.00$                   -$                      

Total Expenditures 327,000.00$          44,889.19$            24,735.73$            69,624.92$            53,418.28$              257,375.08$          

Packet Page 67



Town of Montreat Cash & Investments Report As of 3

Institution Type Maturity Date Balance Central General Water Int. Rate Int for mo

Avl Sav Bank Checking x2519 183,925.57$       183,925.57$   0.00% -$                 

Avl Sav Bank Cent'l Dep x 6863 3,805.80$            3,805.80$       0.00% -$                 

Avl Sav Bank Savings - Powell Bill 3572 198,539.80$       198,539.80$     0.10% 16.40$             

Avl Sav Bank Savings - Water Res. 7727 58,109.75$         58,109.75$       0.10% 4.77$               

Avl Sav Bank MMkt Acct xxx1204 1,216,381.67$    1,216,381.67$  0.08% 79.14$             

Avl Sav Bank Subtotal 1,660,762.59$    

BB&T MMkt Act - General Fund 449,771.24$       449,771.24$     0.01% 3.82$               

BB&T MMkt Act - Water Fund 157,398.93$       157,398.93$    0.01% 1.34$               

BB&T Subtotal 607,170.17$       

NCCMT Investment - General Fund 6,427.89$            6,427.89$          0.19% 1.04$               

NCCMT Investment - Water Fund 6,712.91$            6,712.91$         0.19% 1.09$               

NCCMT Subtotal 13,140.80$         

All Accts Subtotal 2,281,073.56$    187,731.37$   1,871,120.60$  222,221.59$    0.06% 107.60$           

All Accts Fiscal Year to Date 1,870,943.40$    0.06% 527.57$           

(average) (average) (cumulative)

Avl Sav Bank CD, 1yr x6827 Empl Benf 11/24/2016 54,415.89$         54,415.89$       0.15% 23.40$             

Avl Sav Bank CD x5119 11/12/2016 10,342.18$         10,342.18$       0.15% 4.61$               

CDs Subtotal 64,758.07$         0.15% 28.01$             

All Accts + CDs Total 2,345,831.63$    0.07% 135.61$           

All Accts + CDs Fiscal Year to Date 1,935,661.80$    0.06% 580.07$           

(average) (average)  

December 31, 2015

Packet Page 68



  TOWN OF MONTREAT 
 

P. O. Box 423 
Montreat, NC 28757 

Tel: (828)669-8002   Fax: (828)669-3810 
www.townofmontreat.org 

 
December 21, 2015 
 
 
Ms. Sharon G. Edmundson, CPA 
Director, Fiscal Management Section 
State and Local Government Finance Division 
 And the Local Government Commission 
North Carolina Department of State Treasurer 
3200 Atlantic Avenue 
Raleigh, NC 27604 
 
 
Dear Ms. Edmundson: 
 
We are in receipt of your letter of November 12, 2015. While we appreciate the concern that has 
been expressed with regard to our Town’s Water Fund, we believe that the financial position of 
the Water Fund as reported in our FYE 2015 audited financial statements needs to be understood 
within its proper context. 
 
First, we would point out that the Water Fund has seen an increase in net position in seven of the 
past ten years, as indicated in Table 3, page 65 of our FYE 15 CAFR. The decrease in net 
position for FYE 15 amounts to only around 3% of the total net position for the water fund. This 
is for reasons which we will discuss below, and should not be seen as being indicative of any 
long term trend of concern. 
 
Second, the reason why we ran a loss in the Water Fund on a budgetary basis in FYE 15 (as 
indicated on Schedule 2, page 60 of our FYE 15 CAFR) – and also a negative cash flow (as 
indicated on Exhibit I, page 25 of our FYE 15 CAFR) -  is due entirely to the exceptional capital 
outlay activity associated with several related special assessment projects. We will, of course, be 
recovering the cost of these capital expenditures through special assessment revenues received 
over the next ten years. Because the Final Assessment Rolls were not certified to Buncombe 
County until early in FYE 16, we were not yet able to book any offsetting receivable associated 
with these special assessments. We do anticipate doing so in FYE 16, completely in the case of 
the government-wide full accrual statements and as available in the modified accrual statements. 
 
Third, we have also just completed an LGC-approved $300,000 financing of these projects, with 
the result that approximately $165,000 of this amount will be entered as cash and the offsetting 
payable accounts in our Water Fund. While this transaction will have no net impact on our net 
position, it will strengthen the current position of the Water Fund by replenishing our cash 
balance and matching the long-term receivables against a long-term payable. It will also result in 
a strong cash increase for FYE 16, which should be set alongside the cash decrease in FYE 15 in 
order to obtain a complete picture of our situation. 
 

Packet Page 69

http://www.townofmontreat.org/�


Ms. Sharon G. Edmundson, CPA 
Director, Fiscal Management Section 
December 11, 2015 
Page 2 
    
Fourth, our adopted budget for FYE 16 for our Water Fund is in balance, with estimated 
revenues and appropriated expenditures of $327,000, and with no transfer from retained earnings 
anticipated. For the first time in several years this is shaping up as being closer to a “normal” 
year of operations, and so far both revenues and expenditures seem to be in line with what our 
budget would anticipate. 
 
Fifth, we did ask our Board of Commissioners to revisit the present water fund fee schedule 
when they met for their annual planning retreat in early 2015, and we intend to do so again when 
they meet in early 2016. We have discussed your letter with the Board at their December 10th 
regular meeting, and all of our Board members are aware that water fees will have to be 
reconsidered in light of anticipated future usage and expenditures, and kept within balance.  
 
Finally, let us close by assuring you that the Town of Montreat’s Water Fund remains in a strong 
financial position. We are taking seriously our duty to monitor this financial position on an 
ongoing basis, and to recommend to our Board of Commissioners any corrective action that may 
be required on a timely and effective basis. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Ron Nalley    Stefan Stackhouse    
Town Administrator   Finance Officer     
 
 

Packet Page 70



Packet Page 71



Packet Page 72



Packet Page 73



Packet Page 74



Packet Page 75



Packet Page 76



Packet Page 77



Packet Page 78



Packet Page 79



Packet Page 80



Packet Page 81



Packet Page 82



Packet Page 83



Packet Page 84



Packet Page 85



NORTH CAROLINA  
PLUG-IN ELECTRIC  
VEHICLE TASKFORCE

2015 ANNUAL REPORT | Advanced Energy & NCPEV Taskforce WWW.PLUGINNC.COM 

Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We 
drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We 
progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We 
share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are 
the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is 
changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a 
movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, 
and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s 
connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We 
breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We 
motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game 
changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, 
and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. 
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are 
a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is 
a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s 
connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We 
breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We 
motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game 
changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, 
and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. 
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are 
a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is 
a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s 
connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We 
breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We 
motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game 
changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, 
and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. 
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are 
a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is 
a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s 
connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We 
breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We 
motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game 
changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, 
and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. 
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are 
a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is 
a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s 
connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We 
breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We 
motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game 
changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, 
and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. 
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are 
a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is 
a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s 
connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We 
breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We 
motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game 
changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, 
and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. 
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are 
a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is 
a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s 
connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We 
breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We 
motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, and we are the game 
changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. Technology is changing, 
and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...Innovation is a journey, and we are a part of a movement. 
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers. We share. We motivate. We progress. We breathe. We drive. Now let’s connect...

Innovation is a journey, and we are part of a movement.
Technology is changing, and we are the game changers.

The North Carolina Plug-in Electric Vehicle Taskforce 

is made possible through the support of Duke Energy 

and North Carolina’s Electric CooperativesPacket Page 86



We Motivate

Celebrating Five Years
This year, the North Carolina Plug-in Electric Vehicle Taskforce celebrated five years of promoting electric vehicles (EVs)! North Carolina is now 

viewed as a leading state for EV adoption. The state has EVs registered in 90 percent of its counties and is the 12th highest ranked state for 

the number of EV charging stations.

The NC PEV Taskforce was formed in 2011 with a kick start from a US Department of Energy funded grant to create NC’s first EV readiness plans 

(Plugging-in from Mountains to Sea, led by Centralina Council of Governments). The plans were released in 2013, and since then the NC PEV 

Taskforce has been supporting implementation of the plans by tracking growth and supporting EV adoption.

The NC PEV Taskforce provides a collaborative opportunity for stakeholders to work together to ensure a seamless integration of EVs into local 

communities. Specifically, the Taskforce works to address barriers, conduct research, increase awareness and recognize the efforts taking 

place across the state. Most importantly, 

the Taskforce motivates others 

across the state to 

support driving 

electric.

We Share

Education and Outreach 
To ensure a seamless integration of EVs into our communities, 

the Taskforce creates and shares resources and information 

through trainings, presentations, exhibits, webinars and articles. 

To increase awareness of EVs in 2015, the Taskforce held:
Workshops

3
Booth Exhibits

8
Presentations

15
Webinars

2

Packet Page 87



We Progress

2015 NC Public Charging Station Study 
The Taskforce worked with Chipley Consulting this year to conduct a study of public Level 2 EV charging stations in our state. Public charging stations 

are expected to play a critical role in preparing the market for EV adoption, however, there is little public reporting 

on charging station management and usage information in the Southeast. Download the report 

Key findings from the study revealed:

• The median energy usage of a public charging station site in  

NC was 183 kWh per month, or $18 per month, assuming $0.10 per kWh

• Half of the public charging sites averaged over 28 charge events per month 

• Average monthly charge events increased for sites that have a variety of destinations  

within walking distance 

Note: This study did not cover usage information for DC Fast Charge stations in NC.

Impact of EVs in NC’s Economy
The NC PEV Taskforce is pleased to announce the commissioning of a modeling study to analyze the impact of EVs in NC’s economy.  

The study will consider three components, including the economic benefit of reduced oil consumption, employment effects and supply  

chain effects for North Carolina. The NC PEV Taskforce will release findings from the study in 2016. 

We Breath

EPRI Study
In 2015, the Electric Power Research Institute (EPRI) and the Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC) released an analysis of air quality 
impacts from a widespread shift to EVs (including light-duty, medium-duty and industrial equipment such as forklifts) from petroleum-fueled 
internal combustion vehicles in the United States. They found that EVs today “are lower-emitting vehicles, even when accounting for the 
emissions associated with producing electricity for them.” 

Looking forward, a shift to EVs could achieve a significant reduction in greenhouse gas emissions. Download the report. 

Packet Page 88

http://www.advancedenergy.org/portal/ncpev/usagesurvey.php
http://www.epri.com/abstracts/Pages/ProductAbstract.aspx?ProductId=3002006881


Now let’s Connect 

We are excited to announce our new state-wide recognition program, Plug-in NC! North Carolina communities, organizations and schools 

are now invited to join. The program seeks to recognize locations that have installed EV charging stations, have purchased electric 

fleet vehicles or are working to promote driving electric. By joining the free program, you will be recognized on the NC PEV Taskforce’s 

website, newsletter and social media. You will also have opportunities to 

connect with other EV supporters across the state to share lessons learned 

and best practices. For more information, visit Pluginnc.com.

We Drive

National Drive Electric Week
The NC PEV Taskforce loves putting drivers behind the wheel of an 

EV. It’s always fun to see their excitement at the quick acceleration 

and quite drive. This year, the Taskforce hosted a large National 

Drive Electric Week event in Raleigh that included test drives 

and an EV showcase. Over 40 vehicles were displayed and eight 

dealerships were present to give test drives. Over 200 people 

attended the event. 

Also during this week, 10 additional events took place across 

the state to celebrate National Drive Electric Week. Altogether, 

events occurred in Asheville, UNC Pembroke, Matthews, Raleigh, 

Charlotte, Dallas, Salisbury, Wadesboro, Spencer and Wilmington. 

NC PEV Taskforce Summit  
This year, the 5th annual Taskforce Summit was hosted in Winston-

Salem, where attendees celebrated the success that has occurred 

through community collaboration. Ben Prochazka, with the 

Electrification Coalition, presented on efforts to develop an EV 

accelerator model and EV tourism programs, and local speakers, 

including David Joyner, Rocky Mount Chamber of Commerce, Bill 

Eaker, Land of Sky Clean Vehicles Coalition, Erika Ruane, Centralina 

Clean Fuels Coalition, and Mary Sell, Triangle Clean Cities Coalition, 

gave updates on the activities taking place across North Carolina.

2015 NC PEV Taskforce Steering Committee Members 

Katie Drye  .......................................................... Advanced Energy
Kristi Brodd  ........................................................ Advanced Energy
Keith Aldridge  .................................................... Advanced Energy
Ward Lenz  .......................................................... Advanced Energy
Ged Moody  ...................................... Appalachian State University
Lee Ball  ............................................ Appalachian State University
Stan Cross  ............................. Brightfield Transportation Solutions
Erika Ruane  ............................... Centralina Clean Fuels Coalition
Jason Wager  .............................. Centralina Clean Fuels Coalition
Jessica Hill  ................................. Centralina Clean Fuels Coalition
Prince John Gaither-Eli  ................................... City of Greensboro
Mike Waters  ............................................................... Duke Energy
Lauren Tuttle  ...........................................Eastern Carolina Council
Rob Will  ...................................................Eastern Carolina Council
Tristan Winkler  ................................ Land of Sky Regional Council

Lyuba Zuyeva .................................. Land of Sky Regional Council
Bill Eaker  ......................................... Land of Sky Regional Council
Kevin Lacey  ........................................................................ NC DOT
Tom Rhodes  ...........................................................NC GreenTravel
Anne Tazewell  ....................NC Clean Energy Technology Center
Rick Sapienza  .....................NC Clean Energy Technology Center
Andrea Bachrach  ...........................Triangle Clean Cities Coalition
Mary Sell  ........................................Triangle Clean Cities Coalition
Rick Schroeder  ................................................................... NCEMC
Cornelius Willingham  ..................................Nissan North America
Marcy Bauer  ...................................................................NRG eVgo
Jennifer Satterthwaite .........Palmetto State Clean Fuels Coalition
David Joyner  .................................Rocky Mount Gateway Center
Alana Napora-Tichenor  .................Rocky Mount Gateway Center 
David Lankewicz  ...................................................... Saft Batteries

Packet Page 89

http://www.advancedenergy.org/portal/ncpev/pluginnc.php


 

North Carolina’s Electric Vehicle Recognition Program 

Innovation is a journey, and we are part of a movement. 

Technology is changing, and we are the game changers.  

We motivate 
Electric vehicles are a new technology and we believe that they can make a big impact. We encourage 

communities and organizations to support this technology by installing charging stations and purchasing 

electric fleet vehicles. 
 

We share 
We spread the word about driving electric and assist others in learning about electric vehicles and charging 

stations. We share experiences and seek to learn from others in order to gain best practices and increase 

electric vehicle adoption.  
 

We progress 
We’re innovators and early-adopters. We see the opportunity that electric vehicles have and we seek to help 

build awareness. We recognize that charging stations help to boost the economy by attracting new visitors and 

serving as a progressive marketing tool.  
 

We breathe 
We care about the environment and want our communities to be healthy places to live, work and play. Electric 

vehicles lead to decreased local emissions so that the air we breathe is cleaner.  
 

We drive 
We strive be a positive influence. We inspire people to think larger and see how electric transportation plays a 

part in our communities. We support driving electric through our initiatives and actions.  

Who can join Plug-in NC? 

  The program is open to businesses, schools and communities located in North Carolina that 

have installed Level 2 or DC Fast Charge charging stations or purchased plug-in electric fleet 

vehicles.  

 

Packet Page 90



 

Why join Plug-in NC? 

  Get recognized on the NC PEV Taskforce website  

  Get highlighted in the NC PEV Taskforce newsletter  

  Get promoted on NC PEV Taskforce’s social media  

  Connect with others across the state who are also supporting electric vehicle adoption  

Questions? 

  Please contact Kristi Brodd at kbrodd@advancedenergy.org or 919-857-9019. 

Packet Page 91

mailto:kbrodd@advancedenergy.org?Subject=NC%20PEV%20Plug-in%20NC%20Question


\\tom-server\datashare\BOC\Board Action Requests\2016 

Requests\REQUEST_MGO_Ch_K_Article_IV_Call_for_Public_Hearing_01142016\REQUEST_MGO_Ch_K_Article_
IV_Call_for_Public_Hearing_01142016.docx 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  January 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV – 
Hillside Development 

AGENDA INFORMATION

Agenda Location: New Business 

: 

Item Number:  A 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
Contact:  David Currie  
Presenter:  David Currie 

BRIEF SUMMARY:

 

    At your 2015 Annual Board Retreat, you asked staff to have Planning and 
Zoning review the required setbacks listed for various zoning districts. During development of 
the Comprehensive Plan in 2006-2007, there was mention of modifying building setbacks in the 
front and rear yards based upon steeply-sloping conditions of some lots, as well as the 
suggestion of increasing front yard setbacks for properties under development within the 
Assembly Drive Corridor to maintain visual consistency. In keeping with the guidance of the 
Comprehensive Plan, the Hillside Development Ordinance (adopted in 2009) does include 
provisions for administratively reducing the front yard setback of smaller lots within steeply-
sloping areas by as much as 50% for the associated zoning district. At their November meeting, 
P&Z reviewed various setback provisions in our developmental ordinances and submit the 
recommendation you see presented tonight.  

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS: To call for a Public Hearing on 
February 11, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss proposed revisions 
to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV – Hillside Development 

FUNDING SOURCE:  None  

ATTACHMENTS:   Proposed revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Montreat General 
Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV – Hillside Development 

STAFF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:   During their review of setback requirements, 
Planning and Zoning members discussed recommendations found in the implementation matrix 
of the Comprehensive Plan. I also provided them with the setback reference found in the 
Hillside Development Ordinance which allows administrative reduction of front setbacks for 
steeply-sloping smaller lots. While their discussion did not generate any recommendations for 
modifying setbacks along Assembly Drive corridor or other existing developed sections of town, 
P&Z members did agree that setback reductions on steeper lots should not be limited based 
upon lot size. If Council wishes to have P&Z reconsider other potential modifications to 
setbacks, I can have them take another look during their next meeting.    

Packet Page 92



MONTREAT GENERAL ORDINANCE 
CHAPTER K: ENVIRONMENT 

ARTICLE IV – HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT 
 
Section II. Administration and Procedures.  
 
(4)(b) Front Yard Setback Reduction. Owners of previously-platted smaller parcels defined as 0.30 acre or 
less with an existing grade of forty percent (40%) or greater may request up to a fifty percent (50%) 
reduction in the required front yard building setback for the associated Zoning District. Requests will be 
evaluated on a case-by-case basis, and permission must be evidenced by written approval bearing 
signatures of both the Zoning and Town Administrators.  
  

Packet Page 93



\\tom-server\datashare\BOC\Board Action Requests\2016 

Requests\REQUEST_MZO_Article_VI_Call_for_Public_Hearing_01142016\REQUEST_MZO_Article_VI_Call_for
_Public_Hearing_01142016.docx 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  January 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Revisions to Montreat Zoning Ordinance, Article VI – General 
Provisions 

AGENDA INFORMATION

Agenda Location: New Business 

: 

Item Number:  B 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
Contact:  David Currie  
Presenter:  David Currie 

BRIEF SUMMARY:

 

    The Montreat Zoning Ordinance does provide some accommodation that 
allows persons with disabilities to request modification of the zoning setback(s), enabling 
construction of accessibility features. This change occurred in 2013 in response to a renewed 
awareness of specific requirements under the Federal Fair Housing Act (FFHA) that require 
municipalities to make “reasonable accommodation” in their zoning codes. Earlier this year, a 
case came before the Board of Adjustment that caused us to reconsider if we had gone far 
enough. A property owner requested a variance to allow addition of square footage to an 
existing bathroom for increased accessibility. After reviewing the variance request and other 
case law on the books for similar situations, staff decided that a variance procedure and the 
associated findings is not well-suited to consider modifying provisions of the zoning ordinance 
under the FFHA. It is our belief that a Conditional Use approval process or a similar approach 
better addresses the need to provide reasonable accommodation, since a variance is tied to 
peculiar physical aspects of the property irrespective of the applicant’s condition. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS: To call for a Public Hearing on 
February 11, 2016 at 7:15 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss proposed revisions 
to Montreat Zoning Ordinance, Article VI – General Provisions 

FUNDING SOURCE:  None  

ATTACHMENTS:   Proposed revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Montreat Zoning 
Ordinance, Article VI – General Provisions 

STAFF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:   Reasonable accommodation under the FFHA 
can be somewhat of a “moving target” for municipalities. Currently, most of the guidance 
defining this concept is being decided in courtrooms across our nation. After reviewing the 
recent case dispensed by the Board of Adjustment, staff believes that the amendment under 
consideration tonight – while not guaranteeing we will avoid court proceedings – does provide 
generous flexibility to hear these requests and thereby grant persons with disabilities the full 
use of their property as other residents enjoy.    

Packet Page 94



MONTREAT ZONING ORDINANCE 
ARTICLE VI – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

612.4   Accessibility FeaturesReasonable Accommodation. In addition to meeting the general 
requirements of Section 612.1, a property owner may request approval to erect or install 
accessibility features within the required yard setback, subject to meeting all the following 
conditions:  

1)  The proposed accessibility improvements shall be demonstrated to be the least possible 
modification of the setback(s) that provides “reasonable accommodations” within the 
zoning ordinance to avoid discrimination against individuals with disabilities.  

2)  Expansion of, or addition to, decks and other appurtenant structures beyond what is 
deemed necessary by the Zoning Official to provide reasonable accommodation for 
accessibility shall not be permitted.  

3)  Accessibility improvements designed and sited to occupy a portion of street right-of-way 
fronting the property served are also subject to review for Administrative Approval by 
the Zoning Official and Town Administrator prior to application for the associated 
construction permits  

4)  The applicant must provide the minimum documentation in accordance with U.S. 
Department of Justice guidelines under the Fair Housing Act, which verifies the 
associated disability or medical condition(s) justify the need to modify provisions of the 
zoning ordinance. 

5) The applicant may apply for a conditional use permit if requesting reasonable 
accommodation for individuals with disabilities. 

  

Packet Page 95



Packet Page 96



Packet Page 97



Packet Page 98



Packet Page 99



Packet Page 100


	DRAFT_01072016_BOC_Agenda
	Request - CIP Presentation 011416 (3)
	USUBJECT:U  2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan Presentation
	UAGENDA INFORMATION:
	Contact:  Ron Nalley

	CIP 2016-2021 Presentation (3)
	DRAFT_12032015_BOC_Agenda_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Pro Tem Mary Standaert
	UBoard members absentU: Mayor Letta Jean Taylor
	UAgenda Approval
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Pro Tem Standaert stated that at next week’s meeting we will have plaque presentations for Mayor Taylor, Commissioner McCaskill, and Commissioner Campbell; recognize our community volunteers; and officially welcome new Town Clerk, Angie Murphy.
	UConsent Agenda Review
	UTown Administrator’s Communications
	UAdministrative Reports
	UPublic Comment – Agenda Items
	Mayor Pro Tem Standaert reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	There were no comments from the public at this time.
	UOld Business
	A. UMontreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article V:  Trees:U Mr. Nalley reported that prior to  the Ordinance adoption at the November Town Council Meeting, the Board removed Section 8: Mitigation of Unsafe Trees on Private Property, with the unders...
	B. UMontreat Landcare Committee Appointments: UMayor Pro Tem Standaert stated that all Landcare entities were asked to update their various appointees to the Committee.  In response to a question from Commissioner Helms, Mr. Nalley stated that all Boa...
	UNew Business
	UPublic Comment – Other Topics
	Mayor Pro Tem Standaert reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to public business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from other community entities.
	There were no comments from the public at this time.
	UCommissioner Communications
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	UAdjournment

	DRAFT_12102015_BOC_Meeting_Minutes
	MSD-Ashley
	Sanitation Correspondence
	Street Names
	Dec 2015 Monthly Statistics Report
	Nov 15 final detail
	Prelim Dec 15
	201511 BudgettoActual
	cash invest rpt 201512
	Ltr to LGC 11Dec15
	December 2015 Zoning  Inspections Report
	2015 PEV Plug-in NC Annual Report
	REQUEST_MGO_Ch_K_Article_IV_Call_for_Public_Hearing_01142016
	UAGENDA INFORMATIONU:
	Contact:  David Currie

	MGO, Ch. K, Article IV P&Z Proposed Revisions
	REQUEST_MZO_Article_VI_Call_for_Public_Hearing_01142016
	UAGENDA INFORMATIONU:
	Contact:  David Currie

	MZO Section 612.4 Proposed Revision P&Z
	LOSRC
	Request Roof Repair
	Roof Repair Bid
	Contract Roof Bid Summary
	General Statute 160A-63

	Button3: 


